OUR SECRET GOVERNMENT

By MYRON C. FAGAN

Published by

CINEMA EDUCATIONAL GUILD, INC.

MYRON C. FAGAN, NATIONAL DIRECTOR Organized to Combat Communism

APRIL - MAY 1956 News-Bulletin

CONTENTS:

- 1) Plans of Mice and Men
- 2) Ike FORCED To Say "Yes"
- 3) "CAPTIVE CANDIDATE"
- 4) Our "Secret Government"
- 5 The Trap is Set
- 6) Martial Law Next Step?
- 7) The Solution
- 8) What Price Congressmen?
- 9) The Case of Congressman Heselton
- 10) THE WASHINGTON CONVENTION

CPA BOOK PUBLISHER

P. O. BOX 596 BORING, OR 97009

PLANS OF MICE AND MEN

Ike did not—and does not—want to run for a second term! Mamie does not want him to run. His son does not want him to run. His real friends do not want him to run. Even before he had that heart attack they didn't want him to run. Their great concern is his health. It is commonly known that as far back as the mid-Thirties Ike has been afflicted with serious stomach disorders and high blood-pressure. In addition, underneath that genial grin, Ike has a violent itemper. A violent temper is bad for even a strong heart—it's murder for a weak one.

Ike knows all that. Even before his heart attack he kept intimating that he might not be available for a second term. In his recent "Yes" announcement he virtually admitted that an active campaign for reelection would kill him. Knowing all that, why did he say "Yes"? The answer is very simple—he obeyed orders!

All of Ike's intimations prior to his heart attack were brushed off by his Palace Guard—and by the Internationalists who placed all their bets on him when they stole the nomination for him in 1952. Their theory was that they would have a clear track for eight years—during which period they planned and expected to achieve their main objectives. The first of those objectives was to transform the U.N. into a One World Government—the second was to transform the U.S. into a unit of the U.N. One World Government.

The achievement of the first objective was scheduled for 1955, on the 10th anniversary of the "United Nations". A gala celebration was to take place in San Francisco, the official birth place of the monstrosity. At the same time the "Charter" was to be revised—and the foundation laid for a quick transformation of the U.N. into a One World Government. The second objective—that of transforming the U.S. into a unit of that One World Government—was to be achieved during Ike's second term.

The first objective began to go sour when "Unesco" and the "Genocide" plot were unmasked. Then came the Korean "police action"... the firing of General MacArthur... the well-founded rumors of the U.N. treacheries in that "police action". In 1954 a brief, but pithy, tract entitled "U.S. CANCELLED BY ORDER OF U.N.", made its appearance. It bluntly charged that a top (Red) U.N. official was the secret Commander-in-Chief of the North Korean and Chinese Reds, and that other U.N. officials revealed all of our battle plans to the Reds—and enabled them to trap our boys.

During that year and the following one more than a million copies of that tract were circulating throughout the nation. That was followed by books and pamphlets and editorials in magazines and newspapers—the few that still are loyal—all stressing the U.N. is a Trojan Horse for the destruction of the U.S. And, even though muzzled as to all the facts by order of the White House and the Pentagon, every Korean war Field Commander from MacArthur down confirmed those charges.

As the evidence piled up the Masterminds behind the U.N. became more and more jittery. They realized that any attempt to inject any "One-Worldism" into the revision of the Charter would be an open invitation to an explosion. Even the ubiquitous Eleanor said: "now is not the time to talk of revisions." And the gala celebration of the 10th anniversary of the U.N. was something less than gala—they hurried through it as if fearful that if they lingered over it someone might say or do something that might set off the explosion anyway.

IKE FORCED TO SAY "YES"

But they did not give up. Not by a long shot! They still had the ace in the hole—TIME was on their side: the four years of time of Ike's second term. Anyway, that was the way they figured. They would wait until after Ike would be re-elected. Then they would put through their revisions. Quietly! And far away from America—so that the American people would not know it was done until it was done, and, perhaps, have no way to undo it. The place was Rome—the time, Spring of 1957.

At this point God apparently decreed otherwise—Ike was stricken with his heart attack. That hit the "Masterminds" like that Atom bomb hit Hiroshima. Without Ike to front for them, and to shield their Trojan Horse, their whole Conspiracy was doomed. It caught them so short they had no one to turn to. Oh, of course they had—and have—other stooges ready and eager to do their bidding, such as Dewey, Warren, Stassen, Dulles, etc., etc. But every one of those wears a political "yellow dog" tag, and not even Ike's blessing would rate any one of them over a Knowland, or a Jenner, or a Bracken Lee.

Yes, those early days after Ike was stricken were very bleak for the "Masterminds". But even so, luck was with them. Had that heart attack been delayed for ninety days, even sixty days, Ike would have been out of the running. He surely could not have given a "Yes" answer until June or July. By that time Knowland would have been entered in all the primaries and a "Yes" by Ike after that would have been too obvious.

THE WASHINGTON SCENE LAST JANUARY

Last January (1956), after exhaustive research in Washington, I issued a Special Report, which I repeated in our February News-Bulletin (No. 48), as follows:

"The Masterminds of the Internationalists' Conspiracy look upon Ike's heart attack as a dirty trick. When they landed Ike in the White House they automatically figured that they would have a clear track for eight years—during which they planned and hoped to achieve their main objectives. And so they lavished all of their controlled Press, Radio and TV on him until they completely brainwashed the American people into the belief that only Ike can be the salvation of the nation—and of the world! They did nothing to build up another 'God-Man' as a possibly needed alternate. Then came the heart attack—and the panic of the Internationalists is the talk of the town in political Washington. The very thought that a Knowland, or a Jenner, or a Bracken Lee might be the next man in the White House makes all the Masterminds break out into a cold sweat!

"However, even as they wail, those Masterminds are not idle. They already have their new plan of action in operation. First of all, they are playing the 'Party' line for all it is worth—the Press, the Radio and TV have been stressing that it would be rank heresy for any true-to-the-Party Republican, such as Knowland or Jenner, to even hint that he is a candidate as long as sacrosanct Ike withholds his decision . . . and Ike is to with-hold that 'decision' until June or July, when there will be no time left for any candidate, other than one 'Blessed' by Ike, to gain any momentum. And then Ike is to announce his 'No' and suggest his carefully chosen successor. However, if the clamor for a decision by Ike becomes too great, he will say 'Yes'—then, on the eve of the Convention, 'regretfully 'announce that 'doctor's orders' force him to withdraw from the race . . . and at the same time he will give his 'blessing' to whomever the Masterminds will have picked.

"But all that depends on events between now and August. If conditions dictate it, Ike will run for a second term—with the next

best 'man on a leash' as his running mate. Thus, if Ike should die within a year or two, or if another heart attack should force him to resign, the White House will still be safe in the control of the Great Conspiracy.

"In short, they will stop at nothing to hold on to the White House—even if they will have to do it with a dying Ike . . . as they did in 1944 with a dying Roosevelt."

I AM BERATED - THEN CONFIRMED

Within days after that report was issued an avalanche of protests poured in on me. From soft hearted, distressed women, from outraged men, and even from angry school youngsters. As with one voice, they all cried out that the saintly Ike would never lend himself to such chicanery. I didn't even attempt to answer the protests—it wouldn't have done any good with such completely bemused Ike-worshippers. It was the story of Saint FDR all over again.

And then, recently, I came across a story, an Editorial in the "San Diego Labor Leader", published on Thursday, April 5, 1956, which confirms my original "Report" in all its details. Following is a verbatim reprint:

"CAPTIVE CANDIDATE

"Is President Eisenhower really running for a second term against his will? Certain facts, which the Eisenhower 'team' is attempting to cover up and keep hidden, seem to indicate that this is so.

"Indications are that Eisenhower is actually a tired old man ready to yield the honor of the Presidency in return for the simple life, but is, in fact, a captive front man who must be kept in office to keep in power for another four years the Republican administration he is supposed to head.

"According to a political memo from the AFL-CIO Committee on Political Education (COPE), the President let the cat out of the bag in a statement made on March 21, soon after he announced he would run for re-election.

"At that time he said, 'I had to say yes, because they told me they

didn't have time to build up another candidate'.

"This statement was written into a news story by Merriman Smith, White House correspondent for the United Press, and was distributed as a Page 1 item to newspapers taking the United Press service.

"The story was 'killed' by the news service almost immediately after it was sent out, the indications being that as soon as it was received the 'fix' was put in by those with the power to muzzle the press.

"Despite the 'kill' order, The Washington Daily News, a newspaper in the capital subscribing to United Press service, printed the story.

"'The reason we are printing this,' the paper said, 'is because we hate to see things that we know happened get printed somewhere else first.'

"The News commented that the story is a dilly of a news item worth a couple of million votes, maybe." It noted that it was a cinch' that the story would get out because several hundred persons already knew about it, including teletype operators, employees in the United Press office, copy editors on newspapers and reporters at the Press Club bar."

"Beyond confirming that the 'kill' order had been sent out, United Press officials refused to comment and would not say who put in the 'fix' order. No effort was made to contradict the statement by Smith, the writer, that the 'story was completely accurate.'

"Those in the know would like to have the mysterious 'they' mentioned by the president identified. Who were the 'they' who told Eisenhower he had to run because 'they' had no time to build up another candidate?

"Those in the know are satisfied that the 'they' are top members of the Republican Party. Those in the know place tongue in cheek and nod understandingly when you mention a 'controlled press'.

"Those in the know are satisfied that the GOP is frantic in fear that Eisenhower might not be the candidate for any reason. Those in the know are aware that without Eisenhower, the captive front man, the GOP would get 'such a licking' next November that it would take more than 20 years for them to stage a comeback.

"Perhaps word of this state of affairs may get around enough for the people to learn of it and discuss it. "Bet the 'they' could secretly murder Ike for blurting out how the pressure was put on him. But it is understandable from a man who didn't know if he was a Republican or a Democrat a few months before the election day of 1952."

So there we have it "straight from the horse's mouth"—as they say on the race tracks. "They", the Masterminds of the Great Conspiracy, give the orders—Ike obeys them. The matter of his health, or his life, or his death, is of no real concern to them. Their only concern is that he live long enough to run, to be re-elected—and to enable them to continue, secretly, in control of the government of the United States.

For those who are still so naive as to doubt that our country is in the grip of a "secret government" I have a suggestion:

LOOK AT THE RECORD

In "The Eisenhower Myth" I clearly established how and when Ike entered the service of the Internationalists' Great Conspiracy, so there is no need to repeat the details in this issue. But one feature, "Eisenhower's Advisory Staff" during his days as our Commander-in-Chief in World War Two, so clearly established the pattern laid down for him by his Masters—the same pattern to which he slavishly adhered during his years in the White House—that it is worthy of a repeat; as follows:

"His 'Chief of Information' was James Paul Warburg, one of the chief partners in Kuhn-Loeb & Co., the International Banking outfit that had financed Trotsky and Lenin-aside from that, this same Warburg is notoriously pro-Communist on his own account, a rabid Internationalist and One-Worlder; in addition, he is a high official and financial backer of the 'United World Federalists' and other One-World outfits . . . Ike's 'Special Adviser on Political Affairs' was E. M. Warburg, another of that sinister clan . . . his Naval Attache was John Schiff, grandson of Jacob Schiff, the original sugar daddy of the Communist Party . . . as a 'Special Adviser on Refugee Affairs' Ike had one Samuel Rifkind, a member of the Wall Street law firm of Weiss, Paul and Rifkind, which has defended many notorious Reds such as Harry Bridges and Oppenheimer-Carol Weiss King, sister of Louis Weiss, senior partner of this firm, was the lawyer of the Communist Party of America. In short, the most influential members of the Eisenhower Advisory Staff were Internationalists and rabid pro-Communists" Ike did not pick that staff—it was picked for him by his Masters.

"There is another item (among the many) of great significance—the infamous conference which Eisenhower held in his London headquarters with traitor Harry Dexter White, at which the evil 'Morganthau Plan' was perfected and put into effect. The objective of that plot was to transform Germany into a purely agricultural nation, remove all of her industrial plants and equipment to RUSSIA—and thus make all of Europe an easy victim for Communism. White, as was even then known, was Moscow's top spy in the United States!"

That "Morganthau Plan" was not an Eisenhower brain child. It was concocted by his Masters—delivered to him by White, with instructions to carry it out—and Ike carried it out!

OUR SECRET GOVERNMENT

The individuals who compose our "secret government" are, of course, invisible to the public eye. Bernard Baruch, Felix Frankfurter, Herbert Lehman, the Warburgs are unquestionably top figures in the Great Conspiracy, but not even Baruch is the HIER-ARCH of the Cabal. He is the "Field Commander". He and his above mentioned affiliates choose the top tool such as FDR was, such as Ike is today; they choose the lower tools, such as Harry Dexter White, Dean Acheson, Alger Hiss—and they dictate all lower job appointments. They are the "they" Ike meant when he said: "I had to say 'yes' because they told me they didn't have time to build up another candidate." They are the men who set up Ike's "Advisory Staff" during World War Two—they are the men who set up his Advisory Staff, better known as the "Palace Guard", after he was elected to the Presidency.

The individuals who compose Ike's "Palace Guard" need no unmasking—their very names do it. Harold Stassen, Tom Dewey, Sherman Adams, Henry Cabot Lodge (he calls himself "Junior"), John Foster Dulles, Herbert Brownell, Paul Hoffman and last, but by no means least, Brother Miltie.

Every one of those individuals owes his place in the Sun to the Internationalist Cabal every one of them is slavishly obedient to the order of the Internationalist Cabal every one of them is an open and self-proclaimed One-Worlder, several of them being top officials in such traitorous organizations as the "United World

Federalists", the "Atlantic Union", and other groups that are openly dedicated to the destruction of the sovereignty of the United States. Every one of them is highly endorsed by the ADL and NAACP, the two hatchet-men organizations of the Great Conspiracy. Compared to every one of them Benedict Arnold was a gentleman!

The above named, plus others, compose the top Echelon of the Great Conspiracy's wrecking crew. They are the "Executives". But there is another gang, all appointed to their jobs by Ike on orders from his Masters, who are even more dangerous. They do the dirty work—and are the more dangerous because they are not in the spotlight—practically nobody pays much attention to them. But their very names and backgrounds give them away, to-wit:

As personal aide Ike has one Max Rabb, whose true name is Max Rabinowitz, and who is one of the top agents of the Internationalist-Marxist machine; Lewis L. Strauss is head of the Atomic Energy Commission, with full power to sabotage our Atomic progress and withhold Bombs from our Military in hour of crisis; Arthur Burns (true name Bernstein) is Ike's Economic Adviser; Louis Rothschild is Maritime Commissioner; Ismar Baruch is Civil Service Chief; Charles Schotland, Social Security Commission; Isadore Jack Martin, Legislative Secretary; Max Abell is Chairman of the so-called Anti-Discrimination Committee (virtually an ADL-NAACP branch in Government); J. Irwin Shapiro, State Department Investigations; Charles Metzner, Assistant Attorney General; Simon Sobeloff, Solicitor General (with full power to appoint thousands of Federal Attorneys); Morris Wolf, General Counsel of the Foreign Operations Administration; S. Rothman, Solicitor Labor Department; Murray Snyder, Assistant White House Press Secretary; Meyer Kastnbaum, Chairman of Commission on Intergovernmental Relations; Samuel Yolan, International Boundaries Commission; Archie Cohen, Board of Review of General Services Administration; Isidor Rabi, Chief Adviser of Atomic Energy Commission; Alfred Katzin, head of UN personnel; Sam Adler, Chairman UMT Advisory Committee; General Lyman Lemnitzer, Commander of all our forces in the Far East. And then, of course, there is Earl Warren to manipulate the U.S. Supreme Court!

It is very interesting to note that the above mentioned Strauss kept silent during all the time that David Lilienthal and Robert Oppenheimer, both Internationalists and pro-Reds, were sabotaging our Hydrogen Bomb project by delaying it until Moscow got a head start it is also significant that this same Strauss is a member of the Internationalist Banking House, Kuhn-Loeb & Co., that

provided \$20,000,000 to finance the Trotsky-Lenin Communist coup in Russia.

It is also very interesting to note that General Lyman Lemnitzer, Ike's newly-appointed Commander in the Far East, is the man who was forced to admit to a Senate Committee in July, 1950, that he had ignored orders to ship \$10,000,000 worth of equipment authorized by our Congress for South Korean defenses against the then known threat of attack by the North Korean Communists.

THE TRAP IS SET

Those I named in the aforegoing are only a few of thousands appointed by Ike and/or his "Palace Guard", on orders from the Masters, who now form a net so powerful that they can instantaneously effect a complete seizure of power when the American people can be demoralized and stampeded by bombs—or threat of bombs!

Many who will read this will pooh pooh such a possibility. Very well, let's do a bit of analyzing: first of all, we must bear in mind that the Internationalists in America promote all of the political measures that the Communists promote. If we stop to think of it, that is only natural—because it was the American Internationalists who financed, planned and brought about the Bolshevik Revolution, using Communism as a front. That was officially revealed in the Sisson Report to President Wilson in 1918 and in the Overman Report to the U.S. Senate in 1919—also in a U.S. Army Intelligence Report published in the Chicago Tribune on June 19, 1920. And we must also bear in mind that TODAY the Internationalists are far more powerfully organized in America than the Bolsheviks ever were in Russia.

In view of that, one might well ask why they didn't pursue the Lenin-Trotsky course to take over America. The answer is very simple: the American people, though they have been very naive about this entire conspiracy, are not as gullible as the simple minded Russian peasant—they would not surrender their rights and their freedoms in return for promises. Besides, the Internationalists had nothing to even promise in return for our present rights and freedoms. So the conquest of the American people had to be accomplished by a different form of guile and craft—the dread of war and the promise of peace! And that hocus pocus the Internationalists hoped would be accomplished through the UNITED NATIONS! And the beloved and saintly Ike was groomed to be the pied piper

to mesmerize and lead the American people into the trap.

But, as I pointed out at the outset, the U.N. scheme began to go sour with the unmasking of "Genocide" and "Unesco". And even if they had been able to explain away both of those vicious plots, the revelations of the treacheries in Korea, soft-pedaled though they have been, convinced the Internationalists that even hypnotist Ike would never be able to induce the American people to willingly walk into a "United Nations One-World Government." They realized that it would have to be done the hard way.

MARTIAL LAW NEXT STEP?

Now what purpose could Ike, the President of our once self-respecting nation, have had in mind when he went to Geneva, other than to show us that "the devil is sick and a saint would be?"

The latest act in a 13 year series of acts friendly to an enemy which has always vowed our destruction should have shown even the most naive Americans that Ike is a friend of the Communist banditti and their so-called philosophy which, on the eve of his departure for Geneva, he himself described as "the great Marxian doctrine".

But was it merely a desire to sincerely find a way to peacefully co-exist with Moscow that sent him to Geneva? Just exactly what happened at those "conferences" in Geneva? What secret agreements did Ike enter into with Zhukov (his pal) and the two Katzenjammer Kids, Krushchev and Bulganin?

I know that many who will read this will be horrified at my very suggestion that the "saintly" Ike could have entered into "secret agreements" that could harm the U.S. and the American people they will call me a hate-monger and character-assassin but let's not forget that another "saint", none other than FDR, entered into secret agreements at Yalta which not only betrayed the American people, but the people of the whole world.

So I will preface what is to follow with the remainder that Ike has always openly expressed himself as being in favor of a One-World Government—with himself as first President (for life), of course.

Now it is only a guess—but a mighty accurate one—that, after those Korean war revelations, the "Masters" were telling Ike that all hopes of peacefully creating a One-World Government had gone a'glimmering. And there is no doubt that BIG BRAIN Miltie was telling him that the only way the people will submit to World Government is through military dictatorship—under threat of atomic annihilation! Hence the vital necessity to maintain the Communist threat—and, if necessary, to eventually use it. Could that have been the main objective of his "Summit Meeting" in Geneva?

Far fetched? Well, even as Ike was drinking cocktails with the Russkies and hugging his old friend, Zhukov, the American people were given a glimpse of the fate in store for us if war is started—or even threatened: a dictatorship as absolute as that of the Kremlin gang in Moscow!

The blueprint for the obliteration of our Republic and the destruction of our Freedoms was leaked to the U.S. NEWS AND WORLD REPORT and published by that magazine on July 1, 1955. Whether it was "leaked" as a feeler to test Congressional and public reaction, or as a threat to make the American people so afraid of a war of world annihilation that they would tolerate Ike's "shenanigans" at Geneva in "the interests of PEACE" is beside the point. The important point is that not one single member of either House of Congress, nor any other public official, or NEWSPAPER, raised a voice in protest. Does that mean that EVERY public voice is muzzled? It, so, then we may expect war to be started any day by the Communist gang in Moscow or the Internationalist conspirators in Washington, both of whom are determined to see our present form of government destroyed and replaced by a dictator.

Following is the "blue print", as "leaked" to and published by the "U.S. News & World Report" in its issue of July 1, 1955:

"A military dictatorship, swift and complete, will take hold at the very moment of any big atomic attack on American cities. This is the word from top official sources in Washington following 'Operation Alert', the civil defense exercise just ended.

"The old idea of 'standby controls', which has been worrying some business men, no longer has any place in official planning. Instead, the President will simply take control—of business, banks, goods, prices, wages, just about everything—and worry about legal authority later.

"Martial law will be clamped on the entire country. This will be the President's first official act after bombs start falling. With that act the President will assume almost unlimited war powers. Dictatorship from Washington, or from the President's nearby hideaway, will be backed by military forces Business will be blanketed by regulations, already written and ready for issue. Raw materials will be rationed. Tools, trucks, supplies will be subject to seizure. Banks will be given orders by Government. Money will be rationed. Depositors, if necessary, will be limited in how much they can draw out of the bank.

"A moratorium very probably will be ordered on debts, contracts, legal responsibilities of various sorts. The order will remain in effect until more normal conditions are restored. Workers will be ordered not to strike, or change jobs without permission.

"Prices and wages will be frozen. Rents will be controlled. Goods will be rationed. Censorship will be imposed at once. Credit will be controlled Factories will be told what to produce Farmers, under martial law, may find their livestock, land and crops commandeered for military use . . . In bombed out areas, martial law will bring strict discipline, enforced at gunpoint by whatever armed forces are available. The Federal Civil Defense Act will come into full effect, empowering authorities to requisition property, including private homes and automobiles. In these areas, people will be subject to draft for whatever labor is needed.

"Individual rights and privileges will disappear for the time being. Habeas corpus, which protects a citizen against imprisonment without due process of law, will be suspended. So will freedom of speech. Spreading rumors might get a person into trouble Under national martial law, so the thinking goes, there will be no time for people or business to balk at doing what they are told.

"Once the dust begins to clear Congress will be asked to ratify the emergency measures ordered by the President."

WON'T WE EVER LEARN?

Actually, the plot described by the "U.S. News and World Report" is not new. We had warnings of it long before it was published—long before that phoney "Operation Alert" in Washington in 1955. We first got a startling hint of it in July and August of 1951, when the "Military Government Reserve" units seized nine cities in Southern California and other parts of the country—in so-called practice "dry runs"—in which they arrested the Mayors and police chiefs, closed courts, schools, libraries, etc., and proclaimed themselves masters of every facility and activity in those cities. They ignored all Constitutional government and all rights of the citizens—all in the name of the United Nations!

Those United Nations "dry runs" received wide coverage in the press and on radio at the time—and aroused a certain amount of public indignation. But the significance of the whole thing was completely overlooked. In fact, it was all glossed over by editorials in the papers which silenced all protests—and played right into the hands of the Conspirators—with the question of: "what else can we do when the bombs start blasting our cities but turn everything over to the military—and to the FEDERAL DEFENSE FORCES?"

That attitude shows the lack of understanding of the world situation. We need never have the war. Instead of pouring billions into futile "Foreign Aid", we can even at this late hour prevent war by simply giving weapons to the hundreds of millions of persecuted anti-Communists in the captive countries, who for years have been crying out to us to help them free themselves by merely providing them with weapons. That is all that is necessary to prevent the supposedly "inevitable" third world war. But that would not fit in with the plans of Ike and his Masters—who must ever keep a strong Communist threat hanging over our heads in order to enable them to finally get their One-World Government dictatorship!

Come to think of it, that heart attack of Ike's may have been a blessing in disguise: without Ike the "Martial Law" plan may not be so good—without him to hypnotize us into accepting it, the people might rise up in rage and smash the entire plan—and provide rope neckties for all the Conspirators.

THE SOLUTION

The "they" mentioned by Eisenhower have only one reason for their insistence that Ike run for a second term: the White House must remain in their control! It won't matter to them if Ike is reelected (with a carefully picked Vice President) or if a Democrat of their choice is elected. As long as it keeps the White House in their control!

Hence it behooves us, the American people, to make sure that none such walks into the White House. There is only one way that we can prevent it: by throwing the choice into Congress. That can be accomplished ONLY by splitting the vote so that neither candidate will get a majority of the Electoral votes. For that, to a great degree, we must look to the South.

In 1948 the South, with nothing like their present incentive, set up what they called the States Rights Party, with Strom Thurmond

as their candidate. Thurmond captured a considerable number of the Southern states. Had the vote in the rest of the country been divided just a little more evenly the choice for the Presidency would have been thrown into Congress.

This CAN happen this year. Reliable sources inform me that the South is reviving the States Rights Party—and this time, with the Segregation question uppermost in their minds, it is reasonable to assume that virtually all the Southern states will support the States Rights candidate. That won't elect him, but it will pull away a lot of Electoral votes from both the Republican and Democratic candidates. And this time the South will get a lot of help from the North—from patriotic organizations in every state in the Union, who are equally determined to throw the choice of the man for the White House into Congress.

The best known of these organizations, outside of the South, are "FOR AMERICA" and "WE, THE PEOPLE". Both are nation-wide in their operations. Both have splendid programs, which, in general, are pointed for the same objective, to-wit: split the vote so evenly between the Republican and Democratic candidates that neither will get a sufficient number of Electoral votes to be elected. Of course, such an outcome depends entirely on the South's States Rights Party—but I believe we can safely count on the South to do its part of the job.

In addition, there is another organization, the Constitution Party, headquartered in Texas. Their objective is directly in line with that of "For America" and "We, The People". They, no doubt, will throw all their strength to the candidate of the States Rights Party.

WHAT PRICE CONGRESSMEN?

If the choice of our President is thrown into Congress, the matter of what kind of men we elect to represent us in both Houses becomes most vital. They must be men who go there to guard the interests of the American people, not special interests; nor to includge their own personal whims.

For example: many members of Congress have long been skeptical about either the need or wisdom of further foreign "economic aid. But most of them continue unhesitatingly to endorse further "military" aid. Actually, there is no difference. One kind of aid can easily act as a substitute for the other. When we relieve another nation of the need to pay for its own defense, we in effect give it just

that much more funds to spend, say, on economic "welfare" schemes. Thus "Military" aid is not in fact solely a military question. It is primarily an economic question. The chief question is not, "How much defense does France need?" but, "why can't France afford to pay for its own defense?" Why must that burden fall on the American taxpayer?

Eisenhower knows all this. He knows that the American taxpayer (and voter) strongly objects to his being further gouged for phony foreign "economic" aid. So he camouflages it by calling it "military" aid.

Every Congressman and Senator knows all this—or should know it if he is worth his salt in that job. Yet the vast majority of them, while they may balk on "economic" aid, for fear of the reaction at the Polls, unhesitantly endorse "military" aid. Why?

1) Pressure from the White House, with threats of having his "patronage" cut off; 2) Pressure from "Minority Groups" in his district or state; 3) Personal reasons, such as motivate a Herbert Lehman or a Wayne Morse . . . fourth and last, but not least, personal arrogance which makes him feel that he is the master, not the servant, of the people who elected him to office.

I mention all this because I am reminded of an incident that took place in Sacramento, California, in 1949, when we were endeavoring to get the California Legislature to rescind that traitorous "United World Federalist" Resolution to transform the U.S. into a unit of a One-World Government. A group of men and women called on their State Senator with a Petition from his county requesting him to vote for the rescission of that Resolution. He curtly rejected the request. Thereupon the group pointed out to him that that "Resolution" was treason-and that it was his obligation to his constituents to vote for its rescission. That infuriated the Senator. Without stopping to debate the merit or demerit of the "Resolution", he arrogantly informed the group that he had been elected to the State Senate to use his judgment as he saw fit, not as his constituents saw fit. And he stubbornly stuck to that decision even in the face of an overwhelming vote in favor of the rescission. Needless to add, that arrogant politico was returned to private life at the next election.

THE CASE OF CONGRESSMAN HESELTON

Recently I have come across a somewhat similar individual in the

House of Representatives in Washington, He is John W. Heselton, representing the First District of Massachusetts.

In recent months there has been a great deal of controversy about Bill H.R. 6376, commonly known as the "Mental Health Bill". I am sure that all of our (CEG) members are sufficiently familiar with this vicious Bill, so that I don't have to go into all of its provisions. It is enough for me to say that this Bill is a grave menace to the rights and Freedoms of every American citizen. One citizen, Mr. George B. Fowler, of Holyoke, Massachusetts, quickly recognizing the gravity of the matter, decided to appeal to his Representative in Congress to fight against it. The following correspondence speaks for itself—and stamps the vital importance of sending the right kind of men to represent the American people in Washington.

"March 1, 1956

"Representative John W. Heselton House Office Building Washington, D. C.

"Dear Mr. Heselton:

"Time and space does not permit adequate discussion of the following subjects, but we request you with the greatest urgency to do everything in your power to defeat H. R. 5550 which proposes U. S. Membership in a new international agency, the Organization For Trade Cooperation. It would be a disaster to become involved in same.

"Also please do everything in your power to defeat the measure represented by Bill H. R. 6376 already passed by the House and concerning mental health—this is now covered by Senate Bill 2973 intended to provide for the hospitalization and care of the mental ill in Alaska, but actually it is an important step in a program designed to go far beyond that—it constitutes a milestone in the program directed toward control of thought, character, and action of everyone in the U. S. and through the medium of absolute authority in the hands of a central government.

"Very truly yours,

George B. Fowler, Treasurer

VALLEY PAPER COMPANY"

"CONGRESS OF THE UNITED STATES House of Representatives Washington, D. C.

"March 7, 1956

"Mr. George B. Fowler, Treasurer Valley Paper Company Holyoke, Massachusetts

"Dear Mr. Fowler:

"I have received your letter of March 1st.

"I cannot agree with your opinion as to H.R. 5550. Rather, I believe that our membership in the Organization for Trade Cooperation would be distinctly in the best interest of this country. While hearings have not been concluded on the bill and, of course, I do not know what recommendation will be made, I intend to support the primary objective of the bill.

"Neither can I agree with the objections you have expressed as to H.R. 6376. Nor can I understand at all the conclusion you have expressed as to what the bill would accomplish if enacted into law. I think that I should add that when it was before the House on January 18, it passed by unanimous vote.

"Sincerely yours,

John W. Heselton"

"March 9, 1956

"Representative John W. Heselton House of Representatives Washington, D. C.

"Dear Mr. Heselton:

"First, let me say that I appreciate very much your letter of March 7th. Secondly, however, let me say that as a constituent and a citizen I not only disagree with your views in respect to H.R. 5550 and H.R. 6376, but that I will hold against you strongly and permanently the fact of the position that you have taken per your letter.

"We consider that for you to hold such views constitutes a betrayal of the people you represent and the obligations you hold by virtue of your official office—nor do we believe that such a position as you have taken is in conformance with your obligations to uphold the Constitution of the United States. You, in effect, subscribe to the proposal that it is advisable for the United States to subordinate itself (in the sphere of activity represented by the Organization for Trade Cooperation, or H.R. 6376 concerning mental health) to groups dominated by communists working in support of program calculated to the interest of subversion.

"The best we can do at the moment for the sake of brevity is to enclose two documents by Dan Smoot which are excellent discussions of both subjects. There is some excuse perhaps (though not justified) if you have been heretofore unfamiliar with these details Having familiarity with these details, however, and still adhering to the position you have described, constitutes in practical effect a crime against our country—as does any action which would subordinate the United States to the decision of any conference, board or group dominated by a majority of aliens or communists.

"Very truly yours,
George B. Fowler, Treasurer
VALLEY PAPER COMPANY"

"CONGRESS OF THE UNITED STATES House of Representatives Washington, D. C.

"March 13, 1956

"Mr. George B. Fowler, Treasurer Valley Paper Company Holyoke, Massachusetts

"Dear Sir:

"I have your intemperate and inexcusable letter of March 9th.

"I realize that it would have been much better if I had declined to acknowledge or answer any of your communications after my letter to you of March 29, 1950 but I did hope that you would exercise your privilege of recommendations or criticisms with some degree of restraint and reason.

"I want to make it clear that I knew that you were opposed to all of my decisions and votes and I assumed that you were in disagreement with the opinions of the great majority of the people in

the First Congressional District and in this country.

"While I do not intend to acknowledge or reply to any communications from you in the future, in the event that you see fit to use the mails further in writing to me, may I suggest that it would be wise for you to submit any letter such as yours of the 9th to a competent attorney for his advice as to the liability you might incur through such careless references to communism or communists.

"Yours truly,

John W. Heselton"

Now I don't know the *Honorable* Mr. Heselton. But I do know George B. Fowler. True, I met him only twice, but I know him very well by reputation. Aside from his being a successful business man and a very highly regarded citizen in his community, I know him to be a very sincere man who is concerned about the survival of our country and the safeguarding of the freedoms of the American people. His letters to Heselton were motivated by that concern. It is obvious that he had no *personal* axe to grind.

As I have said, I do not know Mr. Heselton. My first reaction to his letter might well lead me to paraphrase Shakespeare, and ask: "upon what meat does this our Heselton feed that he has grown so great?" However, there is an old theory that a man reveals himself by his deeds and by the letters he writes. Mr. Heselton's letters reveal him. He further reveals himself in the following letter he wrote to another of his constituents:

"March 24, 1956

"Mr. John F. Sullivan, Jr. 4 Elliot Street Holyoke, Massachusetts

"Dear Mr. Sullivan:

"This will acknowledge receipt of your letter of March 22nd.

"I want you to know that I am not interested in any kind of threats from any source.

"Since your letter indicates that Mr. Fowler has shown you some or all of the correspondence between him and me, I am sending him

a copy of this acknowledgment.

"If you wish to do so, I shall appreciate it if you will show this acknowledgment to anyone you want to see it.

"Sincerely, "John W. Heselton

"cc: Mr. George B. Fowler"

Yes, indeed, upon what kind of meat has this politician been feeding that he has grown so arrogant and insulting?

Here are two men who voted for this man on the theory that he would represent them and their views. No doubt there are hundreds, more likely thousands, of this Honorable Heselton's constituents who know all about this Mental Health Bill and who feel about it exactly as Messrs. Fowler and Sullivan do. I wonder if Mr. Heselton would make similar arrogant replies to all of his constituents who object to that Bill—or to any Bill that Mr. Heselton personally fancies? If so, I doubt that he would have any constituents left. Arrogance and betrayal of voters' interests boomerangs at the polls. That State Senator in California discovered that when he campaigned for re-election. The Honorable Heselton may discover it—if his constituents become aware of his "I am Monarch of all I survey" attitude.

Anyway, that was what I meant when I said that if the choice of our President is thrown into Congress the matter of what kind of men we elect to Congress becomes most vital. It behooves every American to remember that when he steps into the voting booth next November—he should know all about the man he sends to Congress. Especially so in this day and age when so very, very much will depend upon the kind of men we have in Congress. Because no matter who is elected President a loyal-to-the-American people Congress can prevent him from betraying us!

CPA BOOK PUBLISHER

P. O. Box 596, Boring, OR 97009

Email: cpabooks@hotmail.com